ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 6, 2017
3:22 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Sam Kito, Chair
Represent ati ve Adam Whol, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Andy Josephson
Representative Louise Stutes
Representative Chris Birch
Representative Gary Knopp
Representative Coll een Sullivan-Leonard

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative M ke Chenault (alternate)
Representati ve Bryce Edgnon (alternate)

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 69

"An Act repealing the Wrkers' Conpensation Appeals Comm ssion
relating to decisions and orders of the Wrkers' Conpensation
Appeal s Conmi ssion; relating to superior court jurisdiction over
appeals from Al aska W rkers' Conpensation Board decisions;
repealing Rules 201.1, 401.1, and 501.1, Alaska Rules of
Appel l ate Procedure, and anending Rules 202(a), 204(a) - (c),
210(e), 601(b), and 603(a), Al aska Rules of Appellate Procedure;
and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 69

SHORT TI TLE: REPEAL WORKERS' COWMP APPEALS COWMM SSI ON
SPONSOR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 20/ 17 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 20/ 17 (H L&C, JUD

02/ 06/ 17 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

HElI DI DRYGAS, Conm SsSioner

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -1- February 6, 2017



Depart ment of Labor & Workforce Devel opnment ( DOLVD)
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 69 on behal f of the governor.

DEBBI E BANASZAK, Legi sl ative Liaison

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Depart ment of Labor & Workforce Devel opnment ( DOLVD)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Gave an overview of the sectional analysis
for HB 69.

MARI E MARX, Director

Di vision of Wrkers' Conpensation

Depart ment of Labor & Workforce Devel opnment ( DOLVD)
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions about HB 69.

ANDREW HEMENVWAY
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions about HB 69.

NANCY MEADE, Ceneral Counsel

Ofice of the Adm nistrative Director

Al aska Court System

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions about HB 69.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:22:51 PM

CHAIR SAM KITO called the House Labor and Conmerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:22 p.m Represent ati ves Wol ,
Josephson, Stutes, Birch, Knopp, Sullivan-Leonard, and Kito were
present at the call to order.

HB 69- REPEAL WORKERS' COWP_ APPEALS COWM SSI ON

3:23:41 PM

CHAI R KITO announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 69, "An Act repealing the Wrkers' Conpensation
Appeals Comm ssion; relating to decisions and orders of the
Workers' Conpensation Appeals Conmission; relating to superior
court jurisdiction over appeal s from Al aska Wor ker s’
Conmpensati on Board decisions; repealing Rules 201.1, 401.1, and
501.1, Alaska Rules of Appellate Procedure, and anmending Rules

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 2- February 6, 2017



202(a), 204(a) - (c), 210(e), 601(b), and 603(a), Al aska Rules
of Appellate Procedure; and providing for an effective date."

3:24: 45 PM

HEI DI DRYGAS, Conm ssioner, Departnent of Labor & W rkforce
Devel opnent (DOLWD), presented HB 69 on behalf of the governor.
She remar ked:

HB 69, which is before you, would repeal the Wrkers'
Conmpensati on Appeals Conmi ssion and return the appeals
process from the W rkers' Conpensation Board to the
courts. The commi ssion was created to streamine the
appeal s process from the Wrkers' [Conpensation] Board
and provi de expertise in handl i ng wor ker s’
[ conpensati on] cases. Since its creation in 2005,
however, 50 percent of the comm ssion's decisions have
been reversed by the Al aska Suprene Court. The hi gh
reversal rate underscores the fact that the comm ssion

is ineffective. The comm ssion is essentially an
appel late court just like the [Alaska] Superior Court,
and alnost every appellate court in the country is
conposed of a panel a |awers. Yet the conm ssion's
lay commi ssioners have no |egal training and
contribute very little in the way of legal analysis to
the issues being decided by the conmm ssion. It falls

to the commssion's chair alone, who is an attorney,
to resolve the legal issues with mninmal input from
| ay comm ssioners. Further, the chair also wites the

deci si ons. Therefore, the comm ssion's decisions are
the work of one person, and not the work of a panel
with legal expertise in workers' conpensation - a
further departure from the original intent of the

| egi sl ati on. By elimnating the Wrkers' Conpensation
Appeal s Conmmi ssion, the departnent anticipates a cost
savings of $220,400 for the renmainder of Fiscal Year
18, due to the transition provisions in the
legislation, and ... a savings of $440,800 ... in
subsequent years. The inpact on the public wll be
m ni mal . By repealing the commission, the appeals
process wll revert back to the [Al aska] Superior
Court which was the process in state from statehood
until 2005. The court system would see an increase of
approximately 20-30 cases per year. This volune can
easily be absorbed by the court system

3:27:27 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- February 6, 2017



DEBBI E BANASZAK, Legi sl ative Li ai son, Ofice of t he
Comm ssi oner, Department of Labor & Wborkforce Devel opnent
(DOLWD), gave an overview of the sectional analysis for HB 69

She noted that "board" refers to the W rkers' Conpensation
Board, and "conm ssion" refers to the W rkers' Conpensation
Appeal s Conmi ssion. She said HB 69 would repeal the comm ssion.
She stated that sone technical changes are being nmade wth
[consultation fron] the Departnent of Law and will be avail abl e
shortly. She paraphrased from the sectional analysis, which
read as follows [original punctuation provided]:

Section 1 anends AS 23.30.005, by adding a new
subsecti on, clarifying that unl ess reversed or
nodified by a court, decisions of the forner
conmi ssion have the force of |egal precedent.

Section 2 amends AS 23.30.107(b), by renoving
reference to the comm ssion.

Section 3 amends AS 23.30.108(d), by renoving
reference to the conm ssion.

Section 4 amends AS 23.30.108(e), by renoving
reference to the comm ssion.

Section 5 anends AS 23.30, by adding a new section,
clarifying when a board order becones effective and is
final, when it may be stayed, and clarifying when the
board's findings are conclusive and binding on a
reviewing court, and when the director may intervene
in an appeal or petition for review.

Section 6 anends AS 23.30.155, by adding a new
subsection changing a statutory reference from the
conmi ssion to the superior court.

Section 7 anmends AS 39.50.200(b)(31), by renoving
reference to the comm ssion.

Section 8 anends the uncodified law of the State of
Al aska, by anending Rule 204(c)(2) Al aska Rules of
Appel |l ate Procedure, to address bonds for appeal

pur poses.

Section 9 repeals Rules 201.1, 401.1, and 501.1

Al aska Rul es of Appell ate Procedure.

3:30: 11 PM
M5. BANASZAK stated paraphrasing again from the sectional

analysis at section 10, which read as follows [origina
punct uati on provided]:

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -4- February 6, 2017



Section 10 repeals AS 23.20.007, 23.30.008, 23.30.009,
23.30.009, 23.30.125, 23.30.127, 23.30.128, 23.30.129,
23. 30. 155(f), 23.30.395(10); AS 39.25.110(40); AS
44.64.020(a)(12), and 44.64.020(a)(13).

Section 11 amends the uncodified law of the State of
Al aska, by adding a new section relating to indirect
court rule anendnents

Section 12 amends the uncodified law of the State of
Al aska, by adding conditional effect |anguage that the
Act takes effect only if secs. 8, 9 and 11 receive the
two-thirds mpjority vote of each house required by
art. 1V, sec. 15 of the Al aska Constitution.

Section 13 amends the uncodified law of the State of
Al aska, by adding a new section relating to
applicability of amendnments to proceedings pending
before the Comm ssi on.

Section 14 amends the uncodified law of the State of
Al aska, by adding transitional |anguage «clarifying
proceedi ngs seeking review of a board decision and
order that have not yet been filed before the
Comm ssion, nust be filed in the superior court on or
after June 1, 2017 Any appeals not conpleted by the

Conmi ssion on or before Decenber 1, 2017 wll be
transferred to the superior court on Decenber 2, 2017
and clarifying pr ocedur es for requests for

reconsi deration during the transition period.

Section 15 amends the uncodified |law of the State of
Al aska, by adding transitional |anguage.

Section 16 clarifies when the Act takes effect.

M5. BANASZAK added that statutes relating to the conm ssion
would remain in existence until Decenber 2, [2017], even though
the bill would be enacted on June 1, [2017]. This would give
time for the commssion to finish its pending cases and transfer
files before the terns of the conmm ssioners expire on Decenber
31, 2017. The conm ssion would not take any new cases after My
31, [2017], and would have six nonths to wind up its pending
cases by Decenber 1, [2017]. She stated that the proposed bil
woul d essentially put into place the procedures that existed
before the comm ssion was created.

3:34: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked Ms. Drygas what the inpact would
be of noving 20-30 cases to the Al aska Superior Court. He asked
how the court would adapt, and if the noney saved by the
departnment would be transferred to the court.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- February 6, 2017



3:34:39 PM

M5. DRYGAS stated that the departnent would see the savings.

She nentioned that last year a simlar bill was drafted and had
a zero fiscal note. She stated that the nunber of cases
[ potentially shifted to the Alaska Superior Court] is a snal

fraction of +the court's work. She noted that since the

comm ssion's inception, the nunber of appeals filed has been
dropping: in 2007 there were 49, but in 2016 there were only 20
appeal s. The figure of 20-30 cases per year was pulled from
this informtion.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked whet her the departnent considered
using the Ofice of Administrative Hearings (OAH) to act as the
first "trier of fact” and the Al aska Superior Court to act as an
internedi ate appellate court or sonething simlar. He stated
that the OAH is used to dealing with appeal s.

M5. DRYGAS answered yes, it was considered. She stated that
after hearing from practitioners, she learned that the process
prior to 2005 had worked. She stated her concern regarding the
current practice of having two |layers of admnistrative hearings
- going fromthe board to the OAH - before getting a case heard
in court at either the Al aska Superior Court or the Al aska
Suprene Court. She stated that a litigant is entitled to a
revi ew of his/her case in court.

3:37:55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BIRCH asked for «clarification on the appeal
process for an injured enpl oyee.

3:39: 38 PM

MARI E  MARX, Director, Division of Wrkers' Conpensati on
Department of Labor & Workforce Devel oprent (DOLWD), sunmarized

the process of reporting an injury. She stated that if an
enpl oyee is injured, the enployer nust report the injury to the
division and imediately begin paying benefits. Most of the
time, benefits are provided seamessly to an injured worker, and
the board doesn't need to intervene. If a dispute arises about
whet her or not benefits are owed, then the dispute resolution
process begins. She reviewed that the enployee would file a
wor ker s’ conpensati on claim wth t he Al aska Wor ker s’
Conpensati on Board. Both parties engage in discovery and the

enpl oyer can either admt or deny the claim After discovery is

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- February 6, 2017



conplete, the parties can either settle or request a hearing
before the board. She explained that the board has 18 nenbers,
but only a three-nenber panel hears each case. The panel
consi st of: one nenber from [the portion of the board
affiliated with] Ilabor, one nenber from [the portion of the
board affiliated with] industry - both of whom are |ay nenbers

of the comunity who serve on the board - and one full-tine
hearing officer, who is a full-tinme staff nenber and chairs the
heari ng. She stated that the hearing panel takes evidence;

listens to opinions from the treating doctor, the enployer's
nmedi cal evaluator, and sonetines doctors from the board s |ist
of recommended doctors; decides which opinion to believe the
nost; and issues a decision within 30 days of the hearing.
Afterwards, either party may appeal the board's decision to the
Wor ker s’ Conmpensation Appeals Commi ssion, which nakes a
determ nation on the appeal request. From there, either party
may appeal to the Al aska Suprenme Court, which is briefed by both
parties and issues a deci sion.

3:42: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BIRCH noted that the conm ssion dismssed 56
cases, and he asked whether the dismssals were in favor of the
enpl oyee or enpl oyer.

M5. MARX stated the cases can be dismissed for a variety of
reasons, which include time deadlines, requirenents of the
appeal, and briefing tinefranes.

REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH asked for the total nunber of cases that
end up before the Wrkers' Conpensati on Board.

M5. MARX answered that approximately 1,200 reports of injuries
are filed each year and, of those, about 250 clains end up
before the board. She explained that about 10 percent of the
cases before the board go further in the di spute process.

3:44: 23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES asked how many conmm ssioners there are.

IVS. MARX responded that each <case Dbefore +the [Wrkers'
Conpensation Appeals] Commission is heard by a three-nenber
panel . The three-nmenber panel is selected from two |abor

menbers, two industry nenbers, and one full-tine appeals
conmi ssi oner .

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -7- February 6, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE STUTES asked if the full-tinme commi ssioner is the
only person on the payroll.

MS. MARX stated her belief that there is one staff nenber who
assists the chair with adm nistrative functions |ike maintaining
case files and providing notices to parties.

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES asked how many positions would be
elimnated or repositioned if the cases nove to the court
system

3:45: 52 PM

M5. DRYGAS stated that two full-tinme positions are on the
payroll for the conm ssion: one full-time chair position filled
by an attorney and one full-tinme support staff position to
assist the <chair wth getting decisions out and noticing
heari ngs.

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES asked if the positions would be elimnated
or repositioned.

M5. DRYGAS stated the positions would be elim nated.
3:46:40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked who finds the facts along the
procedural pathway and he asked if the comm ssion revisits the
details of the injury.

3:47: 03 PM

M5. MARX stated that generally the trial court - served by the
board in this capacity - is the fact-finding body. The
appel l ate |evel decides questions of |law and whether the | ower
court erred. She stated her understanding that the conm ssion
is not fact-finding.

3:47: 56 PM

ANDREW HEMENWAY answer ed questions about HB 69 and drew upon his
experience as the former chair of the Al aska Wrkers'
Conmpensati on Appeal s Commi ssion. He responded to Representative
Birch's previous question about dismssals in the Al aska Suprene

Court. He stated that when dism ssed from the Al aska Suprene
Court, the decision of the board is final. Wi chever side
appealed would lose the dismssed case. He responded to

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- February 6, 2017



Representative Josephson's question and stated that t he
appel l ate court has no fact-finding authority or role concerning
the nmerits of the case, except in matters where a request for a
stay is rmade. The comm ssion can determine if there was
sufficient evidence to support the findings nmade by the board.

3:50: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH stated his interest in the outcone of the
process. He asked how often injured enployees' <clains are
uphel d t hrough the board, the conm ssion, and the court.

MR. HEMENWAY stated that the spreadsheet [included in the
commttee packet] shows the outcone from the Al aska Suprene
Court of decisions that were appealed from the comm ssion. o
t hose cases, 20 were affirmed, 15 were reversed, and a snaller
nunber were affirmed in part or reversed in part. He stated
that this is an indication of the conm ssion's decisions in the
Al aska Suprene Court. He stated that he is not sure of the
nunbers on appeals fromthe board to the commssion. He offered
his belief that enployees are often unsuccessful on appeal in
cases where the primary issue of the appeal is the board' s
factual findings - when a party disputes that the worker had an
injury. Cenerally the board' s fact findings are sustained,
al though there may be a reversal if the conm ssion determ ned
that the board applied an incorrect |egal standard or considered
evi dence inappropriately. He remarked that he couldn't venture
to say which parties tend to be nore successful on appeal. He
stated that enployees are less likely to succeed if they are not
represented by an attorney. He observed that when both parties
are represented by counsel and have | egal issues on appeal, "You
Wi n sone, you |l ose sone."

3:54: 25 PM

MR. DRYGAS followed up with nore information about funding. She
stated that when the board was created in 2005, no funding was
given to the departnent; the departnment had to use existing
funding from the Wrkers Safety and Conpensation Adm nistration
Account (WSCAA) . She offered her opinion that it would be
unfair to give funding to the court system when the D vision of
Workers' Conpensation is already "pretty strapped” to function
as is, as a result of previous funding cuts.

3:55: 36 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- February 6, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP noted that 100 appeals have gone to the
Al aska Suprene Court, of which only 15 have been reversed. He
asked if this shows ineffectiveness. He asked if a three-person
panel is the problem and suggested that nore nenbers on a panel
m ght increase effectiveness.

3:56:43 PM

M5. MARX clarified that there are 18 board nenbers, 1 appeals
comm ssioner, and 4 lay nenbers who serve on the W rkers
Conpensati on Appeal s Commi ssion. She stated the appellate pane
is made up of five individuals.

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP asked which |evel has one hearing officer
and two nenbers.

M5. MARX responded that is at the W rkers' Conpensation Board
| evel - essentially the trial court |evel.

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP again asked if 15 out of 100 cases being
reversed is a sign of inefficiency.

3:57:31 PM

M5. DRYGAS stated that 56 cases were dismissed, 20 were
affirmed, 15 were reversed, and 4 were affirned in part and

reversed in part. She offered her interpretation that the
[ Wor kers' Conpensation] Appeals Conmssion is not getting it
right enough of the tine. She nentioned that there are other

nmeasures of ineffectiveness. She stated that she spoke with two
board chairs who told her they were essentially doing the work
of the comm ssion - witing the decisions with little input from
conm ssioners - and she offered her concern of its effect on the
significant reversal rate. She stated that it is possible that
a difference could have been seen with a bigger panel, but it
woul d depend on how the panel was nade up. The cases are
legally intensive, and the appellate |evel determ nes questions
of | aw. She stated that the nenbers of the conmm ssion have
expertise on workers' conpensation, but the commssion's job is
to do an evaluative process of |aw She opined that a |ay
person is at a disadvantage to determne if the law and the
facts "measure up." She stated that this is likely part of the
problem with the structure of the comm ssion. She noted that
this issue has been before +the legislature in previous
iterations in 2015 and 2016, and at that tinme neither the
| egi sl ature nor the departnent heard from individuals' opinions
one way or the other. She offered her understanding that there

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 10- February 6, 2017



is a consensus that the current process is not working. She
stated that she does not see why the earlier process was a
problem - returning to the courts after going through one |ayer
of administrative revi ew.

4:01: 02 PM

NANCY MEADE, General Counsel, Ofice of the Admnistrative
Director, Alaska Court System stated that the court systemis
neutral on the proposed l|legislation and had submitted a fiscal
note showi ng zero inpact to the Al aska Court System

4:01:29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES asked how a zero fiscal note is possible
wi th additional work for the Al aska Court System

M5. MEADE stated that the Al aska Court System tries to absorb
changes, to the extent it can, wthout a fiscal inpact. She
enphasi zed the Alaska Court System ains to be extrenely honest
when producing fiscal notes. She stated that Al aska Superior
Court judges would have nore work, and she acknow edged that
wor ker s’ conmpensat i on cases are somet i mes difficult.
Not wi t hstanding that, she said it's not the sort of inpact that
woul d require hiring a new judge or clerk. She stated that the
20-30 new cases per year would be spread anong 40 Al aska
Superior Court judges. She stated that individual judges may
get one to three nore admnistrative appeals per year. She
stated that the court system already handl es between 160-170
adm nistrative appeals per year, so adding 30 to 33 appeals
woul d be an inpact, but not such an inpact to require additional
resources to handle it.

4:03:12 PM

CHAIR KITO related the inpact to a pick-up truck with four
wheel s carrying a |oad: At a certain point, the wheels wll
pop, but, "I think what Ms. Meade is saying is the wheels aren't

quite ready to pop yet."
4:03: 28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON stated his sense that although these
appeals conme with relatively short hearings, in order to do a
good job, the judges would Ilikely be working weekends to
research cases and wite opinions, which are often 20-30 pages.
He asked for confirmation that this is intensive academ c worKk.

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -11- February 6, 2017



4:04:26 PM

M5. MEADE responded, "That is not inaccurate."” She stated that
appeals cases are difficult and the court's mssion is to
resol ve controversies. She agreed that adm nistrative appeals

are different fromtrials and often involve: nore desk time and
studious tinme, a hearing, and |onger decisions. Adm ni strative
appeals are often not as urgent as other matters judges handl e,
such as children's matters or schedul ed hearings. She nentioned
that the appeals can take l|longer than the public expects; the
Al aska Court System has lost positions with budget cuts, and

sonme things are taking nore tine. She remarked, "On the other
hand, we need to do this sort of work. So, if ... the
| egi sl ature passes a bill that says we will get 30 nore cases,
we wll do 30 nore cases. Qur judges will handle these in the
course of their work, and perhaps they'lIl be comng in on a
Saturday to do it, or maybe they'll squeeze it in."

M5. MEADE related that DOLWD has been very receptive of her
proposed |anguage changes or additions which would clarify
statute and nmeke it easier for the courts to take the cases

She stated her belief that through working with DOLWD, sone
revisions wll be suggested to nmke it work better for
everybody, including the injured workers and enpl oyers.

4:07:17 PM

CHAI R KI TO opened public testinmny on HB 69.

[HB 69 was hel d over.]

4:07:47 PM

ADJ OQURNNMENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Labor and Commerce Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
4:08 p. m

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -12- February 6, 2017



